1979

Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc. v. Carnes Corporation and Long Deming Utah, Inc. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

The prolonged proceedings in the lower Court in this matter requires, in the opinion of Appellant's Counsel, a more complete explanation in this brief than the usual desired one sentence statement suggested by the Rules as to the Nature of the Case. This matter has been before the Courts since October 26, 1973. There have been two prior references to this Court. Accordingly, Appellant undertakes to make a more meaningful Statement of the Nature of the Case, which hopefully may assist the Court to an early understanding of the problem and to make more pertinent the exposition of the details which will be later set out in the brief.

Appellant, Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc., is a Utah Corporation. Under a written Sales Representative Agreement with Carnes Corporation, a Wisconsin corporation, it performed services in the sale of Carnes products to the L.D.S. Church which Brown believes entitles it to the payment of a commission by Carnes in the amount of some Fifty Thousand Dollars. Before payment of the commission which Brown believed it earned, Carnes cancelled the Sales Representative Agreement with Brown, and entered into an agreement with Long Deming Utah, Inc., a Utah corporation. Subsequently, Brown was informed, Carnes paid the commission which Brown believed itself to be entitled to, to Long Deming Utah, Inc. Since the entire matter arose out of the construction of the L.D.S. Church Office Building, the actions which gave rise to the claim took place in Utah, involved primarily Utah people, and two Utah corporations. Brown and its counsel believed that the proper forum for presentation of the cause was the Third Judicial District Court in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah. Accordingly, Brown filed its complaint there October 26, 1973. Counsel for Brown had no doubt, applying the then recognized standards for securing jurisdiction over the out of State Wisconsin corporation that it could be accomplished both under the Utah Long Arm Statute 78-27-22 et seq. UCA 1953 as amended, and also under the provisions of Rule 4(e)(4) URCP. Summons was accordingly served in both manners upon Carnes. The matter now before this Court involves solely the effort by Brown to secure jurisdiction

of the Utah Court. The merits of the case have never been presented or considered.

This case has been twice previously before this Court on various aspects of the effort by Appellant to secure jurisdiction over the Respondent Carnes Corporation in the State of Utah. The first time upon an Interlocutory Appeal sought by Carnes Corporation from an Order of Stewart M. Hanson, Jr., Judge of the Third Judicial District Court, vacating an attachment issued by that Court against Carnes and ruling that Carnes, in asking that the attachment be vacated and that the Utah law on attachment be declared unconstitutional, had made a general appearance and was subject to the jurisdiction of the Court. This Court granted the Appeal and ruled that Carnes had not made a general appearance, docket number 14057. This case was before this Court once again on a second petition by Respondent Carnes for Interlocutory Appeal from an Order of the Honorable David Dee, Judge of the Third Judicial District Court, granting a special setting and hearing on the jurisdictional facts to Brown. The second petition for Interlocutory Appeal was denied by this Court, docket number 15564. The present Appeal is the first brought before this Court by Appellant Brown. At the present stage of this case, Long Deming Utah, Inc., defendant, is not involved in the Appeal. The present conflict involves solely the effort by the plaintiff Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc. to establish jurisdiction over the defendant Carnes. Carnes Corporation was originally

a Wisconsin corporation and is presently an unincorporated division of WEHR CORPORATION, a Wisconsin corporation. (R255) More than five years before the Court has been consumed in the effort by the plaintiff and Appellant Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc. to establish jurisdiction over Carnes. The case presents clearly the difficulty and frustration encountered by the plaintiff and its counsel in attempting to achieve what should be a litigant's primary right, to have the Court permit the adequate development of the facts and then to examine and apply the applicable law thereto. This simple goal has not yet been achieved. The review of this case will necessitate a painstaking and detailed examination of the entire record of the proceedings in the Court below. We recognize that in a fifty page brief, we can only hope to highlight the significant problems. We earnestly beseech this Court to afford this matter the careful consideration that the basic issues involved herein entitle it to receive. The decision should not be based upon technicalities of inter Court relationships between Judges of the same Court, nor upon one Judge's view of the actions of counsel which counsel has never been asked or allowed to explain to the Court.

The plaintiff-Appellant, Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc., will throughout this brief be referred to as either Brown, or as Appellant. The defendant, Carnes Corporation, will be referred to hereinafter as Carnes or Respondent.

DISPOSITION OF THE CASE IN THE LOWER COURT

Initially Judge Gordon R. Hall entered an Order Dismissing the claims and quashing service of Summons on Carnes. (R117) On application made by Brown for reconsideration and to vacate the Order the Order was amended by striking the portion which dismissed the claims of Brown, but left standing the portion which quashed service of Summons on Carnes. (R74-75) Judge Stewart M. Hanson, Jr. issued an attachment on funds of Carnes on application of Brown which he subsequently vacated but entered an Order declaring Carnes subject to jurisdiction of the Court by reason of a general appearance. (R65) The Supreme Court overturned Judge Hanson's ruling on Interlocutory Appeal by Carnes, Supreme Court Docket No. 14057. Judge G. Hal Taylor refused to consider a motion to declare jurisdiction established over Carnes and that an Order be issued to require answer or be declared in default, stating that there was no precedent therefore nor any rule under which he could so act and he, therefore, denied the motion. (R224) After re-service of Summons and a new Motion to Quash, Judge David Dee issued an Order granting to Brown a special hearing at which evidence could be introduced and testimony be taken relative to: (a) Carnes activities in the State of Utah which would subject it to jurisdiction under the Long Arm Statute; and (b) The nature of the relationship of Carnes to its sales representative to determine whether service thereon would meet the requirements of Rule 4(e)(4) URCP. (R304)

Sponsored by the S.J. Quinney Law Library. Funding for digitization provided by the Institute of Museum and Library Services Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library.

Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Carnes petitioned for Interlocutory Appeal of Judge Dee's Order. This petition was denied, Supreme Court Docket No. 15564. After the evidentiary hearing before Judge Leary, held pursuant to the requirements of Judge Dee's Order, Judge Leary entered an Order refusing to consider the facts on the question of jurisdiction and, in effect, imposing sanctions for what he apparently considered on his own motion and without notice to counsel or an opportunity to respond thereto, a failure by counsel for Brown to conduct adequate discovery and entered an Order of Dismissal declaring himself to be bound by the earlier ruling of Judge Hall. (R350-357)

NATURE OF THE RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks to have both the Order of Gordon R. Hall and the Order of Peter F. Leary granting the motion of the defendant Carnes for dismissal and quashing service of Summons reversed and vacated. Appellant asks this Court to recognize the sufficiency of the service of Summons upon the defendant Carnes and the jurisdiction of the District Court of Salt Lake County over the defendant Carnes. The case should be remanded to the District Court in and for Salt Lake County, Carnes should be allowed to plead to the Amended Complaint and the case should be tried on the merits.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

As previously stated in the introduction to this brief, this appeal involves solely the effort of Appellant to obtain

jurisdiction over the Respondent Carnes in a lawsuit commenced in the District Court of Salt Lake County. Appellant filed its Complaint in the District Court of Salt Lake County, October 26, 1973, in which Appellant is named as plaintiff, the defendant Carnes Corporation is named as defendant and Long Deming Utah, Inc. is named as a defendant. (R160-163) The Complaint alleges that Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc., a Utah corporation, had a Sales Representative Agreement with Carnes Corporation whereby Ted R. Brown and Associates sold products of Carnes Corporation in the State of Utah. (R160-161) Acting in collaboration with participating Carnes personnel, Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc. sold a specifically fabricated product and other material manufactured by Carnes and used in the heating and air conditioning systems of the new church office building constructed in Salt Lake City for the L.D.S. Church. (R160-161, R537 through 542) Before the Church Office Building was constructed, but after the Carnes material had been selected by the Church architect and incorporated in the specifications due to Brown's efforts, (R523-530) Carnes Corporation cancelled Brown's representative agreement and appointed Long Deming Utah, Inc. as its sales representative in Utah (R161-162). Carnes refused to pay to Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc. the commission which it had earned for sale of the Church Office Building job and to which Ted R. Brown and Associates laid claim. (R160-163) Brown learned that the commission had been paid to Long Deming Utah, Inc. This action

was commenced to recover the commission from Carnes and from Long Deming Utah, Inc. and damages for the failure to honor the contract with Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc. (R160-163) Appellant, through its counsel, caused Summons to be issued upon the Complaint and service was duly made upon Long Deming Utah, Inc. as sales representative of Carnes Corporation in Utah, by serving Lynn Felton, an officer of Long Deming Utah, Inc. (R156) This service was made pursuant to the provisions of Rule 4(e)(4) URCP. Brown also caused Summons to be served under the Long Arm Statute of Utah, 78-27-22 et seq., UCA 1953 as amended, on Carnes by making personal service on Richard Nichols, a Vice President of Carnes Corporation at the home office of the company at Verona, Dane County, Wisconsin. (R159) Long Deming Utah, Inc. answered to the Complaint within the time allotted. (R141-143) Carnes, through its counsel, filed a Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss. (R139) It should be noted that the motion was filed November 29, 1973, and recited that an affidavit in support thereof would be filed subsequently, that it was then in preparation. (R139) The affidavit of Richard Nichols was not filed until January 4, 1974. (R135) Due to the many factors which do not appear in the record because no issue has at any time been raised in regard thereto, the motion was not called up for hearing before the Court until October 1, 1974. (R124) It was called up, as is the usual procedure, before the Law and Motion Division of the Court. The matter was presented on oral argument and the

affidavit of Nichols (R135-137) and of Ted R. Brown (R133-134), Mr. O. Wood Moyle III appearing for Carnes and Craig G. Adamson appearing for Brown. Judge Hall took the matter under advisement and subsequently, on October 18, 1974, entered an Order dismissing the claims of the plaintiff Brown and quashing the service of Summons against Carnes. (R117-118) Appellant, on October 25, 1974, filed a Motion for Reconsideration or to Vacate or in the Alternative Amend the Judgement. (R113) This motion was not immediately called up for hearing before the Court by Appellant because in the meantime counsel for the Appellant had learned that the final payment for the construction of the L.D.S. Church Office Building had not been made and that, possibly, the Church or the general contractor might still have funds which would be ultimately paid to Carnes. Accordingly, on November 4, 1974, Appellant applied to the Court for issuance of a Writ of Attachment. (R109) The Writ was issued and served. (R57, 44, 55, 56, 107) No funds were attached, however, both parties attached advising they held no such funds. (R77) Mr. Moyle on behalf of Carnes filed a Motion to Release the Attachment on the grounds that there was no Complaint on file within the meaning of Rule 64C, that the Rule 64C did not comply with the Constitution of the United States, and further alleging that the attachment was not issued in compliance with Rule 64C. (R102) On January 8, 1975,

being apprised that the parties attached claimed not to have any funds belonging to Carnes and seeking to elicit further information which might possibly be used at a future hearing on the motion pending before Judge Hall, Appellant served a Notice of Taking of Deposition of the Vice President of Long Deming Utah, Inc., Lynn Felton. (R103) This was promptly met by counsel for Long Deming Utah, Inc., who filed a Motion for Protective Order and to Quash Request for Production of Documents (R99-100) on January 14, 1975. A reply to this Motion for Protective Order was filed by Appellant on January 16, 1975. On January 16, 1975, counsel for Carnes called up by Notice of Hearing, the motion pending before Judge Hall for reconsideration of the Judgment entered by him and also the motion of Carnes for release of attachment. (R93) This was to be heard January 23, 1975. (R93) An amended Notice of Hearing dated January 17, 1975, and filed by counsel for Carnes on January 20, 1975, rescheduled the proposed hearing to February 11, 1975, at 9:00 a.m. (R95) At the hearing before Judge Hall on this Motion, he was requested by counsel for the Appellant to vacate his Order Quashing Service of Summons and set the matter for a hearing at which the facts concerning the activities of Carnes in the State of Utah might be shown by an evidentiary hearing which could not be had before the Law and Motion Division. Judge Hall recognized his error in dismissing the plaintiff's claims and amended his Order by striking the portion of the Order which so

provided, but he refused to reconsider the Order to Quash Service of Summons and denied the verbal request for a further hearing on that matter. (R74-75) Judge Hall refused to consider the matter of the release of attachment stating that since this was issued by Judge Hanson, it would have to be presented to Judge Hanson. (R75) The Order of Judge Hall was entered on March 5, 1975. Thereafter Appellant, acting under Rule 72(a) preserved its right of appeal from Judge Hall's Order by filing a Notice of Intention to Appeal. (R70) On March 18, 1975, Appellant filed a Motion for Order Determining Defendant Carnes had Entered a General Appearance, Declaring Jurisdiction of the Court over Carnes, and Requiring Carnes to Answer to the Complaint. This motion together with the Motion of Long Deming for a protective Order and the Motion to Release the Attachment, filed by Carnes, were all noticed up for hearing before Judge Hanson on the 26th day of March, 1975. (R68) On the day appointed, all parties appeared by counsel and the matters were argued to the Court. (R65) Judge Hanson ordered the attachment released for irregularities in compliance with rules relating to pre-judgment attachments, but held that Carnes, in seeking a Constitutional determination on the matter of the attachment procedures and Rules in Utah, had entered a general appearance and ordered that Carnes answer to the Complaint within ten days from the entry of the Order. The parties stipulated that the matter of the protective Order sought by Long Deming had in part been

rendered moot by the other rulings of the Court and accordingly the Court struck the matter from the calendar to be recalled when and if desired by either party. (R65-66)

Carnes promptly petitioned for an Interlocutory Appeal to this Court from the Order of Judge Hanson. The appeal was granted. This Court ruled that Carnes had not made a general appearance and that the Order of Judge Hanson in so determining and requiring Carnes to answer should be and was set aside. (Docket No. 14057 in the Supreme Court) To re-activate the proceedings in the District Court, Appellant elected to file a Motion Declaring Service of Summons on Carnes Sufficient and requesting that the Court order Carnes to Answer or be found in default. (R198) This matter was called up before Judge G. Hal Taylor who was at that time sitting on law and motion, to be heard on February 17, 1977. (R219) At the hearing counsel for Brown moved the Court to set a special hearing at which evidence could be presented concerning the activities of Carnes in the State of Utah which Appellant believed sufficient to subject it to the jurisdiction of the Utah Courts. Judge Taylor stated that he could find no rule under which the motion presented could be made and refused to consider the same on the ground that there was no precedent therefore and the Court had no authority to make such an Order. The Court also denied the Motion made orally for a hearing on the evidence. (R221, 222, 223)

Acting under Rule 4(b) where service has been obtained upon one defendant within the year, (service having been had on Long Deming Utah, Inc.) Appellant issued a new Summons and caused the same to be served on the newly appointed sales representative for Carnes, Utemp - Utah Air Sales, which was duly served by the Sheriff on Richard Bartlett McDowell, an officer of Utemp - Utah Air Sales. (R230) Appellant also caused service under the Long Arm Statute to be made by making service upon an officer of the Carnes Company at its home office in Verona, Wisconsin. The Sheriff served Bruce J. Kessler, process agent. (R234-235) Appellant had preserved its right to appeal from the Order entered by G. Hal Taylor by filing a Notice of Intention to Appeal under Rule 72(a). (R227) Carnes, again acting through its attorney, O. Wood Moyle III, filed a Motion to Dismiss. (R232) Instead of calling up this new Motion to Dismiss before the Law and Motion Division of the Court for hearing, Appellant filed a motion asking that a special hearing be granted at which evidence and testimony could be presented before the Court on the activities of Carnes in the State of Utah, and of the activities of Utemp - Utah Air Sales, its sales representative. (R237-238) This matter was heard before Judge David Dee on August 23, 1977 at 2:00 p.m. Judge Dee heard the arguments of counsel, reviewed the record and considered the affidavit filed by the parties as well as the extensive memoranda submitted by counsel in support of their respective positions

and then made and entered a memorandum decision followed by an Order based thereon which granted the special hearing requested by Appellant and provided:

"ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

"1. The motion of the plaintiff for an order designating a special setting for an evidentiary hearing is granted and said hearing shall not be limited solely to evidence concerning the service of process on Richard Barrett McDowell. The parties shall be permitted to present all evidence pertinent to determination of the question of whether or not Carnes was doing business in the State of Utah so as to subject said corporation to the jurisdiction of the courts of this State.

"2. Counsel for the plaintiff shall arrange for such evidentiary hearing before one of the judges assigned to the Trial Division of this Court.

"3. The claim of the defendant Carnes in support of its motion to dismiss, that the entire issue of jurisdiction of the Court over the defendant Carnes is Res Judicata, is denied." (R304)

Carnes, through its counsel, objected to the Order and a further hearing was granted but the Court entered an Order denying and overruling the objections of Carnes to the above mentioned Order. (R302-303) This Order was entered November 17, 1977. Carnes promptly petitioned the Supreme Court for an Interlocutory Appeal on the ground that the matter of jurisdiction over Carnes was res judicata by reason of Judge Hall's and Judge Taylor's rulings and that therefore Judge Dee could not make such an Order. Appellant answered Carne's petition for Interlocutory Appeal. The Supreme Court entered

Sponsored by the S.J. Quinney Law Library. Funding for digitization provided by the Institute of Museum and Library Services Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library.

Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

an Order on January 11, 1978, denying the Interlocutory Appeal. (See the Record on the petition and supporting memoranda in the file of this Court under docket number 15564, also R320.)

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