1978

# Ted R. Brown and Associates, Inc. v. Carnes Corporation and Long Deming Utah, Inc. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### Introduction

This appeal is not concerned with the merits of the plaintiff's claims, but only with the question of personal jurisdiction over Carnes. Plaintiff has argued its position four times and on each occasion Carnes has prevailed. Now, for the fifth time, plaintiff seeks another opportunity to articulate the same issue. Its attempts to litigate the issue repeatedly, each time piecing-in slightly more evidence until its position, hopefully, meets with success, cannot be countenanced. Plaintiff had its day in



court. It cannot now be heard to say after losing that it should be given further opportunity to develop its case.

Carnes contends the orders dismissing it from this action, based on the state courts' lack of jurisdiction over it, should be affirmed. This must be the result in view of the substantial evidence previously presented to the trial courts.

I. THE APPEAL IS PREMATURE SINCE  
THE DISTRICT COURT'S ORDERS ARE  
NOT FINAL AND IMMEDIATELY APPEALABLE.

There is, at the outset, a genuine question of this Court's jurisdiction to hear the appeal. The Court's authority to review the decisions of the district courts is specifically limited by law to final orders and judgments. See, e.g., Utah Const. Art. VIII, §9; §78-4-17 Utah Code Ann. (1953); Rule 72(a), U.R.C.P. The two orders appealed by the plaintiff are not final and, therefore, they are not now appealable to this Court. The appeal is premature.

Where, as here, several defendants are charged with concerted wrongdoing,<sup>4</sup> an order dismissing one of them from the action for lack of personal jurisdiction is not

---

4. Both the complaint and amended complaint allege that Carnes and Long Deming Utah, Inc., conspired to terminate the plaintiff's sales representative contract. The prayer for that claim seeks relief from the defendants jointly. (R. 160-163; 337-341).

immediately appealable as a final decision. Rule 54(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure governs the entry of a judgment in actions with multiple parties; it provides:

When more than one claim for relief is presented in an action, whether as a claim, counterclaim, cross-claim, or third-party claim, and/or when multiple parties are involved, the court may direct the entry of a final judgment as to one or more but fewer than all of the claims or parties only upon an express determination by the court that there is no just reason for delay and upon an express direction for the entry of judgment. In the absence of such determination and direction, any order or other form of decision, however designated, which adjudicates fewer than all the claims or the rights and liabilities of fewer than all the parties shall not terminate the action as to any of the claims or parties, and the order or other form of decision is subject to revision at any time before the entry of judgment adjudicating all the claims and the rights and liabilities of all the parties.

Under the rule, then, an order or other form of decision, however designated, is not final if it adjudicates any of the rights and liabilities of fewer than all of the parties in the action. The order may become final and immediately appealable only after the district court has completed two tasks: (1) it must make an express determination that there is no just reason for a delay in the entry of the judgment; and (2) it must expressly direct the entry of the judgment.

The objective of the rule is to prevent the unnecessary expense and delay of piecemeal appeals by requiring the parties to present the whole cause for review in a single appeal.

There are no Utah cases which have addressed this precise issue under Rule 54(b) of the Utah procedural rules.<sup>5</sup> There is, however, persuasive authority from other jurisdictions which indicates that the dismissal of fewer than all parties for lack of personal jurisdiction falls squarely within the ambit of the rule. For example, decisions interpreting Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,

---

5. Rule 54(b) has been addressed by this Court in only one reported decision, that of M & S Construction and Engineering Co. v. Clearfield State Bank, 24 Utah 2d 139, 467 P.2d 410 (1970). That opinion dealt with the issue of multiple claims under the rule rather than the issue of multiple parties, as here. The plaintiff's complaint had been dismissed with prejudice by the district court, and one of the two defendants had been granted judgment on its counterclaim against the plaintiff and it also had been granted judgment on its cross-claim against the other defendant. The Supreme Court reversed the dismissal of the complaint but it refused to disturb the defendant's judgments on its counterclaim and cross-claim. In light of the reversal and remand for trial, less than all of the claims presented in the action had been adjudicated; there had been no express determination by the district court as required in Rule 54(b); and, therefore, the defendant's judgments were not final, were subject to revision, and could not then be reviewed by the Supreme Court.

The opinion is important here for its unequivocal recognition of the necessity for the district court's "certification" under Rule 54(b) in actions of multiple claims and/or parties. Without certification, the order is not final and immediately appealable.

which is virtually identical to the Utah rule,<sup>6</sup> hold that in these circumstances such jurisdictional orders are not final and not appealable without the district court's certification. See, e.g., Bernardi Bros., Inc. v. Pride Manufacturing, Inc., 427 F.2d 297 (3rd Cir. 1970) (where district court entered its certificate, the appeal was valid from an order dismissing the corporate defendant for lack of jurisdiction and the action remained pending for another defendant); Farrell v. Piedmont Aviation, Inc., 411 F.2d 812 (2nd

- 
6. The Utah rule contains two minor changes of phraseology, including a substitution of "and/or" for "or" after "third-party claim," and an insertion of "by the court" after "express determination," both in the first sentence. The federal rule provides:

When more than one claim for relief is presented in an action, whether as a claim, counterclaim, or third-party claim, or when multiple parties are involved, the court may direct the entry of a final judgment as to one or more but fewer than all of the claims or parties only upon an express determination that there is no just reason for delay and upon an express direction for the entry of judgment. In the absence of such determination and direction, any order or other form of decision, however designated, which adjudicates fewer than all the claims or the rights and liabilities of fewer than all the parties shall not terminate the action as to any of the claims or parties, and the order or other form of decision is subject to revision at any time before the entry of judgment adjudicating all the claims and the rights and liabilities of all the parties.

Cir. 1969) (in wrongful death action, district court dismissed non-resident defendants for lack of jurisdiction and entered a 54(b) certificate from which valid appeal was taken); United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. v. American State Bank, 372 F.2d 449 (10th Cir. 1967) (where the district court executed its certificate under Rule 54(b), the appeal was valid from an order of the trial court vacating its previous order allowing the filing of the third-party complaint, quashing the service, and dismissing them from the action); see generally 6 J. Moore, Moore's Federal Practice ¶54.27[6] at 343-344 (2d ed. 1978).

It is readily apparent from a review of the record that neither Judge Hall nor Judge Leary was requested by plaintiff to enter the necessary two-prong determination under Rule 54(b). The orders are, therefore, not appealable.

II. JUDGE LEARY PROPERLY DETERMINED  
AFTER A HEARING THAT JUDGE HALL'S  
DETERMINATION WAS CORRECT.

In his order of May 30, 1978, Judge Leary granted Carnes' motion to dismiss, thereby quashing service of process upon it. (R. 355). In addition, he specifically held as follows:

Substantially all of the evidence presented before this Court was peculiarly within the knowledge of Plaintiff, was obtainable by interrogation of the witnesses Young and Tregeagle, or by discovery prior to the hearing before Judge Hall on or about October 1, 1974. (R. 355).

He explained the latter holding more thoroughly in his memorandum decision. (R. 324-325). He noted that the plaintiff had both a right and an opportunity to present evidence in opposition to Carnes' motion to dismiss before Judge Hall on October 1, 1974; that the plaintiff had ample time between the filing of the complaint (October 26, 1973) and the hearing before Judge Hall (October 1, 1974) in which to conduct discovery related to the applicability of the long-arm statute to Carnes and related to any agency relationship between Carnes and Long Deming Utah, Inc., for purposes of service under Rule 4(e); and that plaintiff did not commence discovery until January 8, 1975. He concluded, therefore, that since substantially all of the evidence presented to him could have been presented timely to Judge Hall, he would not overrule Judge Hall's prior decision of dismissal.

The record supports Judge Leary's reasoning. In the hearing of October 1, 1974, before Judge Hall, the plaintiff did not attempt to present substantial evidence concerning Carnes' business activities in Utah. It offered only a

single, conclusionary affidavit from its corporate president. (R. 133-134). This point is even more significant given the two additional considerations that the plaintiff took it upon itself to notice-up the Carnes' motion for a hearing, and that the hearing date was at least ten (10) months subsequent to the date on which the motion was originally filed with the court by Carnes. During this time span the plaintiff could have conducted discovery related to the jurisdictional issues. Although plaintiff had the opportunity to submit any interrogatories, depose any witnesses or parties, file requests for admission or seek the production of any documents that would support its case, it elected to notice Carnes' motion for hearing before the court on the strength of its president's affidavit only. Plaintiff had its day in court and, as Judge Leary concluded, it cannot now be heard to say after losing that it should be given further opportunity to develop its case. The issues of whether Carnes was doing business in the State of Utah and whether the state courts thereby acquired jurisdiction over Carnes, were already submitted to the court and the issues decided.

The plaintiff's criticism of Judge Leary's conclusion is two-fold. First,<sup>7</sup> it concedes that evidence could

---

7. Appellant's Brief at 48-49.

have been presented to Judge Hall but only in the form of affidavits. And, it suggests that if more formal and extensive evidence should have been presented, there is nothing in the record which indicates the plaintiff failed to request such a hearing before Judge Hall. Carnes' response to the argument is brief. Plaintiff bears the responsibility of preparing its own case. It alone must decide what evidence to offer, when to do so and in what manner. If it considered affidavits inadequate, it should have pursued alternate tactics. If it deemed a formal evidentiary hearing to be crucial it should have demanded it in a manner designed to protect its record.

Second,<sup>8</sup> plaintiff contends the issue of overruling Judge Hall's determination was never presented to Judge Leary. In fact, quite the opposite is true. During the evidentiary hearing before Judge Leary, counsel for Carnes repeatedly objected to matters on the basis they had already been presented to Judge Hall and decided. (See, e.g., R. 422; 497; 514-515).

---

8. Appellant's Brief at 50-51.



III. CARNES IS NOT SUBJECT TO THE  
JURISDICTION OF THE UTAH COURTS  
UNDER THE LONG-ARM STATUTE.

Plaintiff insists Carnes has actively transacted business in Utah within the meaning of the Utah Long-Arm Statute and is, therefore, subject to the jurisdiction of the local courts. Whatever the conceptual simplicity of plaintiff's argument in its brief, it wholly ignores both the facts of this case and the controlling legal principles.

In several paragraphs<sup>9</sup> plaintiff belittles Carnes' legal argument to Judge Hall that the plaintiff's claims did not arise within the coverage of the long-arm statute. To the contrary, that argument is correct. It is important to remember that the complaint served on Carnes in Wisconsin in 1977 was identical in language to the one originally filed by the plaintiff in 1973. Neither made an allegation of specific types of conduct which should render Carnes subject to the jurisdiction of the Utah courts. Rather, they merely recited that jurisdiction was based on a single subparagraph of the long-arm statute, §78-27-24(2), and on related but unspecified provisions of the Utah Code. That provisions provides as follows:

---

9. Appellant's Brief at 38, 45-46.

Any person, notwithstanding Section 16-10-102, whether or not a citizen or resident of this state, who in person or through an agent, does any of the following enumerated acts, submits himself, and if an individual, his personal representative, to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state as to any claim arising from:

\* \* \*

(2) Contracting to supply services or goods in this state;

\* \* \*

On the basis of this jurisdictional allegation Carnes moved to dismiss this action on November 28, 1973. It set forth several arguments in its supporting memorandum. (R. 125-132). First, it contended that the long-arm statute provision relied on by the plaintiff was inapplicable to the plaintiff's claims. It is critical to observe that §78-27-26 Utah Code Ann. (1953) permits only those claims arising from acts specifically enumerated in §78-27-24 to be asserted against a defendant over whom jurisdiction is based on the long-arm statute. The plaintiff's claims did not arise from Carnes' contractual agreement to supply equipment to third parties in the State of Utah. There have been no claims covering that equipment, either the manner in which

it was supplied or its quality. Indeed not. This cause of action arose, as stated in the complaint, solely from an alleged breach and wrongful termination of the plaintiff's sales representative agreement with Carnes. The equipment supplied by Carnes to the church office building has nothing to do with the plaintiff's claim for breach of contract, other than to establish a measure of damages for the lost sales commissions. Subsection (2) of §78-27-24 cannot, therefore, support a claim of jurisdiction over Carnes.

Plaintiff subsequently amended the complaint in January, 1978, in order to plead jurisdiction on the specific basis of the entire Utah Long-Arm Statute and those provisions in §§78-27-20, to 28 Utah Code Ann. (1953), and also on the general basis of a repetitive, blanket statement that Carnes had done business within the State of Utah. Attention is, therefore, directed to the entire Utah Long-Arm Statute.

The Utah Supreme Court first interpreted the long-arm statute in Hill v. Zale Corp., 25 Utah 2d 357, 482 P.2d 332 (1971). There, an employee commenced an action in the Utah state courts against his former employer, a Texas corporation. The defendant was a parent corporation of

numerous wholly-owned subsidiary corporations operating as retail outlets throughout the United States, including Utah. The plaintiff had been employed for nine and one-half years in several of the defendant's subsidiaries. Plaintiff brought suit in Utah for wages and fringe benefits he claimed due for services rendered to one of the defendant's subsidiaries in another state. Service of process was made upon the assistant vice-president and regional manager of the defendant, whose office was in Utah.

The district court granted the defendant's motion to dismiss the action on the ground that the defendant was a foreign corporation not subject to service of process within the State of Utah. This Court reversed an appeal, holding that the defendant corporation had, in a continuous and regular manner over a period of years, maintained such contacts and carried on such activities within the state of Utah that it should be subject to the jurisdiction of its courts. The Court noted that the officers and directors of the defendant were practically identical with those of its Utah subsidiaries; that the defendant had engaged in advertising and other promotional activity in Utah; that in its promotional activity the defendant gave no indication the local subsidiaries were separate corporate entities from the

parent; and that the defendant exercised extensive control over the business operations of its local subsidiaries, including control of security, auditing, receipts, disbursements, and employee wages and incentive awards.

In reaching its decision the Court analyzed the provisions of the Utah long-arm statute, and it expressed the appropriate judicial inquiry in the following manner:

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